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INTRODUCTION
Over the last twenty years, the global wine market has undergone 
considerable changes. One phenomenon that has attracted the 
attention of many observers and analysts of the sector is the boom 
of sparkling wines. The sharp rise in demand for this category 
of wine can be explained by many factors, such as changes in 
consumers’ preferences and tastes.

This document is an update of the OIV focus on sparkling wines 
published in 2014. The main objective of the report is to provide 
a general overview of the recent evolution of the global sparkling 
wine market. This study was conceived to analyse the sparkling 
wine production and consumption at both world and country level 
as well as to study international trade dynamics.

In this context, as shown in the diagram below, only the category 
of “sparkling wines” as defined by the OIV1 and identified with 
the Harmonized System (HS) code 220410 has been considered 
in this report. Other special wines2 produced with endogenous or 
exogenous CO2 such as carbonated wines have not been considered. 

1 International Code of oenological practices:  
http://www.oiv.int/en/technical-standards-and-documents/oenological-practices/international-code-of-oenological-practices
2 Wines that have undergone certain treatments during or after their production and whose characteristics come not 
only from the grape itself but also from the production technique used.

SPARKLING WINES 

Endogenous CO2 
(Fermentation)

OIV Definition 

“Special wines….
characterised on 
uncorking by the 
production of a more 
or less persistent 
effervescence 
resulting from the 
release of CO2 (the 
excess pressure of 
this gas in the bottle 
is at least 3.5 bars at 
20°C) of exclusively 
endogenous origin.” 

(Code I.4-6 OIV 18/73  
& OIV 6/79)

CARBONATED WINES

Exogenous CO2 
(Addition)

OIV Definition

“Special wines … 
showing physical 
characteristics 
analogous to those 
of sparkling wines, 
but whose CO2 is 
partially or totally of 
exogenous origin.” 

(Code I.1.4-7 OIV 18/73)

OTHER SPECIAL WINES

• Liqueur Wines
• Sweet wines with 
residual sugar derived 
from grapes
• Icewine-eiswein
• Wine with an alcohol 
content modified by 
dealcoholisation
• Flor or film wines 

SPECIAL WINES

For further information on production methods and classifications 
of sparkling wines, see Annex A

http://www.oiv.int/en/technical-standards-and-documents/oenological-practices/international-code-of-
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In this report, data on 82 countries over the 
period 2002-2018 was examined.
The following sources were used:
• Official data provided by OIV Member States 
through questionnaires
• Data available in official reports published by 
governmental and intergovernmental agencies 
• Data available in non-official reports published 
by non-governmental bodies representing the 
wine sector
• Data from other sources and estimates, which 
are generally reviewed by OIV experts
• IWSR for consumption data
• Global Trade Atlas (GTA) and UNComtrade 
database for international trade data

For a full list of sources, please refer to the 
section at the end of the report.
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1 • PRODUCTION 
In the last twenty years, the sparkling wine market 
has expanded at a fast pace in response to high global 
demand. In 2018 the world sparkling wine production 
reached for the first time 20 mhl, with an overall increase 
of +57% since 2002 (i.e. +3% per year on average).  
While before the economic crisis of 2008 sparkling wine 
used to represent about 5% of global wine production, 
in more recent years it reached an average weight of 7%, 
with a record-high 8% in 2017.

As shown in fig. 1.3, the production of sparkling wine 
is highly concentrated. Almost half of the total volume 
produced in 2018 comes from Italy (27%) and France 
(22%) and the top 5 producing countries account for 
80% of the global sparkling wine production.  

Fig. 1.3 • Breakdown  
of sparkling wine production in 2018 

Fig. 1.1 • Evolution of world sparkling wine production 
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As shown in fig. 1.4 the production of sparkling wines 
is distributed all over the world. However, the highest 
concentration of producers is within the European 
Union. In fact, since 2000 the EU has represented 
between 70 and 80% of the world production volume.

Italy is the world’s largest producing country since 2016. 
Italian sparkling wine production in 2018 is 5.3  mhl, 
about 10% of its total wine production. Since 2008 the 
production volume of Italian sparkling wines has more 
than doubled, recording an average annual growth rate 
of 9%. This substantial increase has been mainly driven 
by high demand for both closed tank sparkling wines 
(e.g. Prosecco3) and, although to a lesser extent, bottle-
fermented wines (e.g. Franciacorta and Trento). Out of 
the total national production volume of sparkling wine, 
Prosecco alone represents 66%.

France is the second-largest producer of sparkling 
wines with 4.4  mhl in 2018, a value in line with the 
average registered over the last 15 years. 

3 Prosecco production includes Prosecco (80%) and Conegliano-Valdobbiadene (20%); the latter is the new designation of origin of Prosecco,  
which is only produced in a specific area in the Veneto region.

Champagne is the first sparkling wine produced in 
the country with 2.7  mhl produced in 2018. In recent 
years, other sparkling wines known as “crémant” have 
increased their market share. It is the case of Crémant 
d’Alsace, Crémant de Bourgogne, Crémant de Loire, and 
Crémant de Bordeaux whose 2018 production volumes 
were equal to 310  khl, 232  khl, 185  khl, and 67  khl 
respectively.

In third place in 2018, there is Germany with a 
lower-than-average production of about 2.8  mhl 
(whereas the average of the last twenty years is more 
than 3 mhl). Among all producing countries, Germany 
is the one with the largest share of sparkling wine in 
national wine production (28% in 2018). 

In 2018 production of sparkling wine in Spain amounts 
to 2.1 mhl. Since 2000, this category of wine has almost 
doubled its production volume, recording an average 
annual growth rate of 4%. Cava is by far the most 
produced sparkling wine in the country and represents 
52% of the total volume produced in 2018.

Fig. 1.4 • Sparkling wine production in 2018 
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The only large producing country outside the EU is the 
USA, where the sparkling wine production (1.3 mhl in 
2018) has flourished since 2008, with an average annual 
growth rate of 4%. 

The largest share of sparkling wines comes from the 
Napa Valley, where the production volume in 2018 was 
equal to 1 mhl (i.e. 77% of the national total).

Fig. 1.5 • Top sparkling wine producing countries 
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Although the production of sparkling 
wines remains concentrated in a few 
countries, new producing countries 
are emerging in recent years.
These countries4 have registered 
significant increases in their 
sparkling wine production over the 
period 2008-2018. In order of the 
average annual growth rate, we 
find the UK (+33%/year), Portugal 
(+18%/year), Brazil (+7%/year), and 
Australia (+3%/year). It is also worth 
noting that in the UK sparkling 
wines represent more than 70% of 
the total domestic wine production

4 Only countries with 2018 production volumes equal to or above 100 khl and with an average annual growth rate equal or above 3% are considered here.
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2 • CONSUMPTION 
From the beginning of this century, the global 
consumption of sparkling wines has significantly 
increased. As shown in fig. 2.1, over the period 2002-2018, 
demand for sparkling wine has been rising consistently, 
with the only exception of the biennium 2009-2010 
when the global economic crisis negatively impacted 
sparkling wine sales. The steady growth path recorded 
since then - with an average annual growth rate of 
3% - culminated in 2018 when global sparkling wine 
consumption reached 19  mhl. In terms of the relative 
weight of sparkling wines in overall wine consumption, 

while in 2002 it was at 5%, in 2018 sparkling wines 
represent 8% of total wine consumption.

One of the factors behind the global success of sparkling 
wines is the deseasonalisation of consumption (which 
is not linked to end-of-year celebrations anymore) 
combined with a more diversified supply characterised 
by a broader range of prices than in the past. Nowadays, 
consumption of sparkling wines tends to be more 
regular (e.g. as an aperitif or used to make cocktails) and 
includes a larger share of consumers.

Fig. 2.2 • Weight of sparkling wine 
in total wine consumption

Fig. 2.3 • Breakdown 
of sparkling wine consumption in 2018

Fig. 2.1 • World consumption of sparkling wine
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In 2018, five countries - Germany, France, USA, Russia, 
and Italy - represent 62% of global sparkling wine 
consumption. 

Germany is the first country in terms of sparkling wine 
consumption in 2018 with 3.2  mhl. White sekt is the 
domestic sparkling wine most consumed in the country. 

France is the second country in terms of consumption 
with 2.6 mhl in 2018, a value slightly below the average 
observed in the last twenty years. The most consumed 
sparkling wine is Champagne, with 147  million bottles 
sold in France in 2018. 

The USA registered a significant growth in the period 
2008-2018 with an average annual growth rate of 7%, 
reaching in 2018 a consumption volume of 2.6 mhl.

In 2018, Russia registered a sparkling wine consumption 
of about 1.6 mhl. Overall, imports represent 30% of the 
total volumes consumed. 

Italy is the fifth consumer in the world, with 1.6  mhl 
consumed in 2018. Since the 2008 crisis, the internal 
demand has been increasing at a fast pace of about 
5.5% per year. The first sparkling wine consumed in the 
country is Prosecco, which accounts for about half of 
total consumption.

It is worth noting the rapid expansion of the UK market, 
which registered on average +7% per year since 2008. 
The UK is the sixth country in terms of consumption in 
2018 with 1.5 mhl.

 

Fig. 2.4 • Sparkling wine consumption in 2018
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The share of the six largest consuming countries has 
declined from 76% in 2008 to 70% in 2018. Over the 
same period the part of consumption represented 
by “other countries” has increased by 1.7  mhl. This 
variation can be attributed, to a large extent, to the rise 
in the consumption of the emerging sparkling wine 
consuming countries5 in fig. 2.6. 

5 Only countries with 2018 consumption volumes equal to or above 100 khl and with an average annual growth rate equal or above 3% are considered here

Considering the average annual growth since 2008, 
the top-ranking is: Mexico (+13%), Sweden (+11%), 
Canada (+8%), Brazil (+8%), Japan (+5%), Australia (5%), 
Switzerland (4%) and Argentina (3%).

Figure 2.5 • Top sparkling wine consuming countries

Figure 2.6 • Emerging sparkling wine consuming countries

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

Germany France USA Russia Italy UK Other countries

mhl 

2008 2018

0

200

400

600

800

Australia Japan Argentina Brasil Sweden Switzerland Canada Mexico

khl

2008 2018

©OIV

©OIV



FOCUS OIV  
THE GLOBAL SPARKLING WINE MARKET

12APRIL 2020

3 • INTERNATIONAL TRADE 

3.1 • World trade

The international trade of sparkling wine has intensified 
since the end of the last century. It has steadily 
increased both in volume and in value, with the only 
exception of 2009 when the economic crisis heavily 
impacted international markets. Since then, the volume 
of internationally traded sparkling wine has almost 
doubled, with an average annual growth rate of +6%. 

In 2018 the volume of global exports was 8.9 mhl, which 
represents 9% of total wine exported worldwide. In 
terms of value, the growth since 2009 is even more 
substantial, with an average of +8% every year. In 2018 
the total value of sparkling wine exports reached a 
record-high 6.2 bn EUR, which represents 20% of the 
overall value of wine exported.

Figure 3.1 • Evolution of international trade volume of sparkling wine

Figure 3.2 • Weight of sparkling wine 
in total export volume 

Figure 3.3 • Weight of sparkling wine 
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In fig. 3.4 volume and value indexes (set equal to 100 in 
2002) show not only the significant growth of sparkling 
wine trade but also the different impact of the economic 
crisis on volume and value. While the crisis has sharply 
hit premium sparkling wines, which explains the sharp 
decline in value in 2009, at the same time, it favored 
the entrance in the international markets of lower-
end sparkling wines, which has mitigated the adverse 
effects of the crisis on volumes. Since then, both trade 
volume and value have risen at a similar pace. 

By looking at the evolution of average export prices at 
world level in fig. 3.5, we can observe different behaviours 

when comparing sparkling and bottled still wines. 
Sparkling wines have prices growing significantly in the 
pre-crisis period, reaching in 2007 up to EUR/l. 
A sharp price decline was measured between 2007 and 
2009, when demand for “premium” and “ultra-premium” 
sparkling wines fell considerably, thus opening the doors 
of the export market to “lower-end” sparkling wines. 
Export prices started to grow again in the period 2010-
2012 and have stabilised at around 7 EUR/l since then. 
On the other hand, average export prices of bottled still 
wines recorded a more stable evolution. In 2018 the 
average export price per unit of still wines was 4 EUR/l, 
almost double than at the beginning of years 2000s.

Figure 3.4 • Evolution of international trade in volume and value of sparkling wine (index=100 in 2002)

Figure 3.5 • Evolution of average export prices
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3.2 • Exports

The export market is highly concentrated, with three 
countries - Italy, France, and Spain – representing 85% 
of world sparkling wine exports in 2018. It is worth 
noting that the weight of these three countries in the 
world total has been increasing consistently since 2008 
(when their share was about 79%).

With 3.9 mhl exported in 2018 (i.e. 73% of its national 
production), Italy alone accounts for 43% of the world 
sparkling wine export market. Since 2002, the exported 
volume of Italian sparkling wine has registered an 
average growth rate of  more than +10% per year. Behind 
this boom is Prosecco, that in 2018 represents 65% of 
Italian sparkling wine exports. As shown in fig. 3.10 
main destinations were the UK, the USA and Germany. 
In terms of value, sparkling wine exports in 2018 were 
worth 1.5 bn EUR, , i.e. 25% of global export value.

France is the second exporter in terms of volume at 
1.9 mhl in 2018, with Champagne alone accounting for 
1.1 mhl. 

Exports represent about 43% of total national sparkling 
production, thus confirming the important role played 
by the strong internal demand. Export volume has 
been increasing consistently since the beginning of the 
century (with the only exception of the biennium 2008-
2009 when the economic crisis hit hard on the demand 
of Champagne). However, while France used to represent 
about 33% of the total exported volumes worldwide at 
the beginning of the 2000s, in 2018 the weight of French 
export is about 21%. Main export destinations in 2018 
were the USA, the UK, and Singapore. In terms of value, 
France still represents 52% of the global export value 
with 3 bn EUR, although in 2003 this share was about 
70%.

Spain in 2018 is the third-largest exporter just behind 
France, with 1.8 mhl. Unlike France the great majority 
of Spanish sparkling wine produced is sold abroad 
(88% in 2018). Since 2002 Spain more than doubled the 
volume of its exports, a growth driven by the rise in 
demand of Cava that reached 1.2 mhl of exports in 2018.  
The main destinations for 2018 were the USA, Germany, 
and Belgium. In 2018 Spanish exports are worth 0.5 bn 
EUR, i.e. 7% of global value. 

©OIV

Figure 3.6 • Top sparkling wine exporters in volume 

Figure 3.7 • Top sparkling wine exporters in value 
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Figure 3.8 • Breakdown of sparkling wine 
exports by volume in 2018 

Figure 3.9 • Breakdown of sparkling wine 
exports by value in 2018 

Figure 3.10 Main sparkling wine trade flows in 2018
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As highlighted above, high market concentration 
does not leave much space for other countries in the 
global export market. It is worth noting, however, that 
Germany holds the 4th place in terms of volume (0.3 mhl 
in 2018) and 5th place in terms of value (128 m EUR in 

2018). Also, an important role is played by re-export 
platforms such as Lithuania (5th in volume in 2018 with 
0.1 mhl) and Singapore (4th in value in 2018 with 329 m 
EUR).
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3.3 • Imports

In 2018, more than half of the bottles of sparkling 
wine exported were shipped to the 5 world-largest 
importers: the UK (1.4 mhl), the USA (1.4 mhl), Germany 
(0.7 mhl), Belgium (0.4 mhl), and Russia (0.4 mhl). 

Among the top five importers, the USA, Russia, and 
the UK recorded the highest average annual growth 
rate over the period 2008-2018, with 11%, 7%, and 6%, 
respectively. 

In terms of value in 2018, the USA is the largest 
importer (with 1112 m EUR), followed by the UK (723 m 
EUR), Japan (523 m EUR), Germany (425 m EUR), and 
Singapore (308 m EUR). Since 2008 the USA and Japan 
have recorded significant growth with an average of 
+9% and +7% per year.

Figure 3.11 • Top 10 importers of sparkling wine by volume 
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Figure 3.12 • Top 10 importers of sparkling wine by value 
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3.4 • Market internationalisation

Finally, we conclude this chapter with an index of market 
internationalisation, which is constructed as the ratio 
of global wine exports over global wine consumption. 
This indicator gives an idea of the share of bottles of wine 
consumed in the world that are traded internationally. 

It is interesting to observe that, while sparkling wines 
used to be relatively less traded internationally than still 
wines, starting from 2016, the trend has inverted.

In 2018 this share for sparkling wines is 48% while still 
wines are at 43%. In other words, this means that every 
two bottles of sparkling wine consumed in the world, 
one has passed at least one border.

Figure 3.13 • Market internationalisation index 

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

Sparkling wine Still wine
©OIV



FOCUS OIV  
THE GLOBAL SPARKLING WINE MARKET

18APRIL 2020

SOURCES 
Agenzia per le Erogazioni in Agricoltura (Agea) – https://www.agea.gov.it/ 

Agrex Consulting - https://flotjo.wixsite.com/agrex-consulting

Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau (TTB) - https://www.ttb.gov 

Australian Bureau of Statistics (AUSSTAT) - https://www.abs.gov.au/

Bulgarian Wines - http://baiw.org 

Buna Ziva Iasi - https://www.bzi.ro

Consejo Regulador del Cava - http://www.docava.es 

Comité Champagne - https://www.champagne.fr 

Executive Agency on Vine and Wine (EAVW) - http://bulgarianwines.com 

España Exportación e Inversiones (ICEX) - https://www.icex.es 

Établissement National des produits de l’Agriculture et de la Mer 
(FranceAgriMer)- https://www.franceagrimer.fr

Fedagri - https://www.fedagripesca.confcooperative.it

Federal Office of Agriculture (OFAG) - https://www.blw.admin.ch 

Federale Overheidsdienst Economie  
(FOD Economie) - https://economie.fgov.be 

Federal Statistics Office - https://www.destatis.de 

Federal State Statistics Service (ROSstat) - https://gks.ru 

Global Trade Atlas (GTA) - https://www.gtis.com/gta/

Instituto Brasileiro do Vinho (IBRAVIN) - https://www.ibravin.org.br

Instituto Nacional Estadística (INE) - https://www.ine.es

Instituto Nacional de Vitivinicultura (INV) - https://www.argentina.gob.ar

Instituto Nacional de Vitivinicultura Uruguay  
(INAVI) - http://www.inavi.com.uy

International Wines and Spirits Research (IWSR) - https://www.theiwsr.com

Istituto di Servizi per il Mercato Agricolo Alimentare  
(ISMEA) - http://www.ismea.it 

https://www.agea.gov.it/
https://flotjo.wixsite.com/agrex-consulting
https://www.ttb.gov
https://www.abs.gov.au/
http://baiw.org
https://www.bzi.ro
http://www.docava.es
https://www.champagne.fr
http://bulgarianwines.com
https://www.icex.es
https://www.franceagrimer.fr
https://www.fedagripesca.confcooperative.it
https://www.blw.admin.ch
https://economie.fgov.be
https://www.destatis.de
https://gks.ru
https://www.gtis.com/gta/
https://www.ibravin.org.br
https://www.ine.es
https://www.argentina.gob.ar
http://www.inavi.com.uy
https://www.theiwsr.com
http://www.ismea.it


FOCUS OIV  
THE GLOBAL SPARKLING WINE MARKET

19APRIL 2020

SOURCES 
Istituto di Statistica Nazionale (ISTAT) - https://www.istat.it

Ministerio de Agricultura, Pesca y Alimentación - https://www.mapa.gob.es

Ministry of Agriculture of the Czech Republic - http://eagri.cz

Ministry of Work, Economy and Consumers - https://www.mpo.cz

National Bureau of Statistics of the Republic of Moldova  
https://statistica.gov.md 

National Tax Agency of Japan (NTA) - https://www.nta.go.jp 

New Zealand Winegrowers (NZWG) - https://www.nzwine.com 

Observatorio Vitivinícola Argentino - https://observatoriova.com 

Ontario Wine Appellation Authority (VQA) - http://www.vqaontario.ca 

Osservatorio Vini Spumanti Effervescenti (OSVE) - https://www.ovse.org

Salon International des Technologies des Vins Effervescents  
(Viteff) - https://www.viteff.com

South African Wine Industry Information and System  
(SAWIS) - http://www.sawis.co.za

State Statistics Service of Ukraine (UKRSTAT) - http://www.ukrstat.gov.ua 

Statistical Committee of the Republic of Armenia - https://www.armstat.am 

United Nations Comtrade - https://comtrade.un.org

Verband Deutscher Sektkellereien - https://www.deutscher-sektverband.de 

Vin Moldova - http://www.vinmoldova.md

Wine Institute - https://wineinstitute.org 

Wines of Great Britain (WGB) - https://www.winegb.co.uk

https://www.istat.it
https://www.mapa.gob.es
http://eagri.cz
https://www.mpo.cz
https://statistica.gov.md
https://www.nta.go.jp
https://www.nzwine.com
https://observatoriova.com
http://www.vqaontario.ca
https://www.ovse.org
https://www.viteff.com
http://www.sawis.co.za
http://www.ukrstat.gov.ua
https://www.armstat.am
https://comtrade.un.org
https://www.deutscher-sektverband.de
http://www.vinmoldova.md
https://wineinstitute.org
https://www.winegb.co.uk
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ANNEX A 
Production methods and classification of sparkling wines

OIV
 CL

AS
SIF

ICA
TIO

N According to the OIV Code I.1.4-4, the final products can be classified according to the residual sugar as 
follows:

• Brut 12 g/l of sugar with a tolerance of + 3 g/l
• Extra-dry between 12 g/l and 17 g/l with a tolerance of + 3 g/l
• Dry between 17 g/l and 32 g/l with a tolerance of +3 g/l
• Demi-sec between 32 and 50 g/l
• Sweet more than 50 g/l

CLOSED TANK FERMENTATION BOTTLE FERMENTATION

BASE WINE

WI
NE

MA
KIN

G P
RO

CE
SS

Traditional method

1) Addition of sugar or 
must, yeast inoculum and 
clarifying agents to the base 
wine (tirage)
 
2) Placing the bottles in 
stacks in a horizontal 
position during the second 
fermentation 
 
3) Gathering of sediments of 
the secondary fermentation 
on the closure (riddling)
 
4) Placing the bottles with 
the head down (inverting 
bottles) 
 
5) Elimination of the 
sediments on the closure 
(disgorging)
 
6) Addition of the dosage, 
a liqueur that gives specific 
sensory characteristics to 
the wines.

Discontinuous method

1) Addition of sugar or 
must, yeast inoculum, and 
clarifying agents to the base 
wine (tirage).
 
2) Storage of the wine 
in a closed tank during 
secondary fermentation.
 
3) To obtain a clear and 
stable wine under isobaric 
conditions, the wine is 
clarified and cooled to 
let sediments deposit 
(clarification and cooling)
 
4) Addition of the dosage, 
which is a liqueur that gives 
the wines specific sensory 
characteristics.
 
5) Isobaric bottling when 
the bottling happens under 
a constant pressure to avoid 
loss of CO2

Continuous method

1) Addition of sugar or must, 
yeast inoculum and clarifying 
agents in a continuous manner 
in a closed tank (tirage)
 
2) Continuous passage of 
the wine through a system 
of tanks in which the yeasts 
are retained (secondary 
fermentation)
 
3) To obtain a clear and 
stable wine under isobaric 
conditions, the wine is clarified 
and cooled to let sediments 
deposit (clarification and 
cooling)
 
4) Addition of the dosage 
which is a liqueur that gives 
to the wine specific sensory 
characteristics
 
5) Isobaric bottling when 
the bottling happens under a 
constant pressure to avoid loss 
of CO2
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